Minutes of the Annual Parish Assembly of the Parish Council held in Lanlivery Church on Wednesday 1st May 2024 at 7.00pm

Present	Cllrs Haley, Challis, Hemmings, Paterson, Richards, Turner and Wright.
In attendance	The Parish Clerk, Mrs Sally Vincent Cornwall Cllr Colin Martin 9 members of the public.

24/19 Apologies Mrs Verna Roberts

24/20 Declarations of Interest

- i. Pecuniary None
- ii. Non Registerable None
- iii. Dispensations None

24/21 Minutes of the Annual Parish Assembly held on 5th April 2023

The minutes had been approved for accuracy on 3rd May 2023. It was proposed by Cllr Paterson, seconded Cllr Sinkins and RESOLVED that the minutes be signed and adopted.

24/22 Matters Arising

None.

24/23 To receive the Chairmans Report

Cllr Paterson gave his annual report

Good Evening everyone and welcome to Lanlivery Annual Parish Council Meeting 2024.

Great to see the many happy members of the Public who regularly attend our Monthly Parish Meetings. For those of you who routinely attend our meetings, you will recall that throughout the past year numerous aspects of life in and around the Parish have been discussed and, if deemed necessary, reported to the relevant Authorities in order we maintain and keep an orderly Parish. Having taken over from Cllr Cathy Haley in April 2023 I have been ably assisted by Sally Vincent our Parish Clerk, who as you know has considerably experience in Parish matters as she is Clerk for several other nearby Parishes plus, she frequently attends Law Court proceedings in her role as Justice of the Peace.

At this time allow me to say on behalf of us all, Sally our heartfelt condolences at the total unexpected and sudden passing of your husband John on Easter Sunday.

In May 2023 we heard that the head count of students at Red Moor school would increase from 57 to approx. 78 once building works has been completed. With that in mind and to limit the disruption to traffic at pick up times in the afternoon, the School principal, Laura, agreed that a representative from Red Moor School would attend future Parish Council Meetings where possible. As the months progressed, we have seen Marshalls in Hi Viz jackets attempting to keep the long lines of taxis in order. I must admit and seeing first- hand the congestion when pick up time arrives, it is somewhat of a bottle

neck. Vehicles which are parked **outside** the main car park but next to the old shop most definitely cause concern as exiting taxis/cars from the car park have very little space to exit the car park as the driver's vision is restricted considerably by those 3 or 4 parked vehicles to their left and the static line of waiting taxis. Work to alleviate this congestion must be a top priority for Red Moor School

Regarding the planning application PA23/03686 behind Churchtown Cottages for a maximum of 9 dwellings, self-build had been ruled out due to altered guidelines which had not been supported in any event. Affordable housing would put the emphasis on the Developer to show how many rentals, shared ownership, open market homes were constructed via technical approval in due course. No further information from the developer has been forthcoming with regards to development of the site in question.

Several Parish members have requested HGV signs to be erected at the top of Penpillick Hill on the road leading off the A390 towards Lanlivery, due to several incidents whereby HGV vehicles, mainly artics, head towards Lanlivery using their GPS only to find at Colligreen, sharp bends and narrowing of the road plus high banks resulted in them having to stop - then reverse several hundred yards whilst doing so causing severe damage to banks and walls plus vehicle damage. Cormac had told Councillor Martin that evidence/photos should be sent to them BEFORE such signs would be erected. With that in mind should any Parishioners/Councillors see such vehicles on the road it was up to us all to take pictures of the vehicles in question and hopefully note down the licence plates of those large vehicles.

Enforcement Issues are of great concern within the Parish and having made what contact we can with the Enforcement group in Council, the standard answer to various aspects of the various Parish Enforcement cases seems to be "Progress, this is currently internal."

Lengthy discussions relating to the play equipment in the field next to Lanlivery Primary school, which is old and must be replaced, has been discussed at practically each Parish Meeting since July 23. Various grants plus a hefty contribution from the Parish Council has resulted in, however, only a partial replacement of the play equipment is in process to take place soon. More play equipment will be ordered only when further funds are forthcoming. The current price to replace like for like play equipment, falls in the region of £40k. Parish Councillors are currently trying all avenues to locate additional funding to increase the items to enable to kids to enjoy the open space. Thomas Bullock Trust have also agreed to donate. To ensure health & safety of the play equipment the replacement items can only be installed in stages as and when funds arrive. Any donations from private individuals would be most welcome. Also, removal of the existing play equipment has been looked at, as a substantial cost is involved. Initially it is hoped the initial funding for the scheme would allow 3 tower XL units, the carousel, nest swing and the relevant safety surfacing to be installed. The communal litter bin, which has been placed outside the Primary School main entrance has been moved to the entrance of the playing field. Due to changes in the contents of black bags as per Cornwall Council ruling, it was deemed necessary to ensure that no one person could be held responsible for leaving a black bag of rubbish containing a mixture of glass jars/bottles, metal cans and dog waste outside their own house. Our thanks to the nearby

neighbour who kindly had been putting out the black bag contents and replacing the black bag in the waste bin outside the school entrance for some years. Contact with the school to undertake the emptying and replacing black bag liners in the bin was not found workable.

Several parishioners have requested permission to place notices and adverts in the notice board outside the Primary School. To be clear, this Notice Board is purely for Parish Council use only. In the past, notices pertaining to Charity fund raising events and such like, have been put up kindly by the Parish Clerk but only when space was available. Should any party wish to erect/install/put up a separate notice board for advertising then they must ensure several points relating to health and safety and insurance aspects are in place at their own cost.

The Parish Council has paid for and erected a Parish Flagpole outside the Primary School and in addition several flags have been purchased privately. Kindly note that should flags be put up for deaths a maximum of 3 days will be allowed to fly a specific flag. Currently the Parish Clerk, Sally, and I have the only 2 keys to unlock the lock to release the halyard for raising/lowering flags.

We as a Parish Council continue to be busy and as the months pass by a variety of queries questions arise so we welcome members of the public to attend our monthly meetings.

Finally, allow me to say that working with and attempting to ensure our Parish flourishes it is up to ALL OF US to work and help Parish Councillors sort out problems and arrive at suitable solutions to the many areas of concern which are brought to our attention. This is a TEAM EFFORT.

Thank you for your time and patience and we look forward to seeing you again next month.

24/25 To receive the report of the Cornwall Councillor

Cllr Martin gave his annual report

Contents:		Contact Details:
Homelessness:	1	If you would like to discuss any issues, please don't
Social Care:	2	hesitate to get in touch.
Education:	3	My Council email is <u>cllr.colin.martin@cornwall.gov.uk</u> ,
Council funding:	4	but I do receive a large volume of messages, so if you
Potholes:	4	want a response, please also contact me by phone or
Road safety:	5	WhatsApp on 07734 434 164.
Grant Funding:	5	Online Newsletter:
Devolution:	5	You can see my latest
Localism:	5	newsletter by scanning
Climate action:	6	this QR code or visiting:
Farming:	6	https://www.seclibdems.uk/ne
Waste and recycling: 6		ws/article/focus-leaflet-may-
Lostwithiel Car Parking:7		<u>2024</u>
Planning enforcement: 7		
Casework Assist:	7	

There are three big issues putting Councils across the country under strain, and all three of them have a disproportionate impact on Cornwall: Homelessness, Social Care and Education.

Homelessness:

Cornwall Council is currently providing "temporary emergency accommodation" for around 800 families who would otherwise be homeless. The Government only provides £15 per night, and the actual costs are usually much, much higher. This issue is particularly severe in Cornwall because local people looking for a place to live are in direct competition with holidaymakers looking for a place to stay. Around 10% of all homes in Cornwall are not homes at all, they are holiday accommodation. Around half of these are "second homes" (used only by the owner and their friends and family) and the other half are "short term rentals" (used by paying customers, e.g. through Airbnb).

In 2021, I brought a motion to Cornwall Council declaring a "housing emergency". This led to a cross-party working group agreeing a list of measures to tip the balance of the housing marked in favour of residential use and away from holiday use. Interestingly all of them are policies which the Liberal Democrats called for when we ran the Council, but the Conservative Government rejected. But now that the very same ideas are being put forward by a Conservative Council, the Conservative Government has agreed to most of them (albeit with some loopholes and delays):

- **Double council tax on second homes:** The law to enable Councils to charge double council tax was passed at the end of 2023, but Councils are required to give a year's notice to owners, so we cannot actually start charging the double tax until April 2024
- **Tighter definition of "business use":** Business premises don't pay Council Tax, and owners of one small business property don't pay business rates either, thanks to "small business rate relief", so there is an incentive for "second home" owners to pretend to be "short term rentals". The old rule simply required a property to be "available for rent" 140 nights per year, but this requirement could be met simply by creating a web-page advertising your property for £1,000 per night (which nobody would ever pay). New rules introduced in April 2023 require owners to provide evidence that they have actually had paying customers for at least 70 nights in the past year.
- Registration scheme: Hotels, pubs and B&Bs have to provide certificates for insurance, gas safety, fire safety and electrical safety, as well as paying for commercial waste collection. The same rules actually apply to short-term rentals, but websites like Airbnb don't ask for evidence, they simply tell owner to "follow local laws". In late 2023, a new law gave Councils a duty to set up a registration scheme to ensure that short-term lets are actually following the rules. Unfortunately, no guidance has yet been provided to Councils to enable them to set up these registration schemes.
- **Creation of a new "use class" for short-term rentals:** Currently any owner can convert a residential property into an Airbnb without any requirement for planning permission. So whilst thousands of new properties are built in Cornwall each year, there is no guarantee that they will be used as homes rather than for holidays. After decades of Lib Dem campaigning, the Government has now created a new "use class" for "C5 Short-term rental" to

distinguish business properties from the residential "C3 Dwellinghouse". Unfortunately, the Government has initially made this a "permitted development right", meaning that owners don't need to ask for permission; they can simply notify the Council of the change. For this new use class to provide meaningful protection for Cornwall's homes, the Council will need to issue an "Article 4 Direction" to remove the permitted development rights, so that anyone wanting to convert a "dwellinghouse" to a "short-term rental" would have to submit a planning application. Cornwall Council is unlikely to be able to do this until it re-writes its "Local Plan" in the next 2-3 years, after which Lanlivery will probably need to update its own Neighbourhood Development Plan too. **So, although this new use-class will eventually be a powerful tool to prevent homes being converted to holiday accommodation, we probably won't be able to use it until 2028!** There is also a loophole for "second homes" which will continue to be classed as "Dwellinghouse".

- Small Business Rate Relief: The Government currently pays approximately £22 million per year to Cornwall Council so that owners of short-term rentals don't have to pay any Business Rates. The Liberal Democrats argue that taxpayers' money shouldn't be subsidising these businesses when there is such a shortage of homes for people to live in. We are calling for the Government to exclude short-term rentals from Small Business Rate Relief, and then give the spare £22 million to Cornwall Council. This would be revenue-neutral for the Treasury, but would help the Council to cover the cost of temporary emergency accommodation, building more affordable homes and improving household energy efficiency. Unfortunately, this policy is not currently supported by the Government, so I will be bringing a motion to Cornwall Council later this month to ask Councillors of all parties to support it.

Social Care:

The average age of the UK population is increasing, so the cost of providing adult social care is increasing too. Around half of those receiving care pay out of their own pockets, whilst half are funded by the Council. Because Cornwall is such a wonderful place to live, many people choose to retire here after spending decades paying their taxes to a different Council elsewhere, so the burden of funding falls harder on Cornwall Council than on many others.

The shortage of affordable housing also makes recruitment difficult, because many people simply cannot find anywhere to live in Cornwall on the low wages paid by the care sector. Anyone wanting to work as a carer can earn the same money outside Cornwall where housing costs are lower.

Most care is provided by "domiciliary care workers" who travel from houseto-house, but this is more expensive in rural Cornwall than it is in more urban areas where travel times are shorter.

When the Council cannot provide care packages, people end up stuck in hospital, which in turn creates long delays for every other part of the system, from waiting lists for planned operations, to waiting times in the Emergency Department, to response times for ambulances. The Government has acknowledged that the Local Government funding formula discriminates against rural areas like Cornwall, and has repeatedly promised a review, but so far this has not happened.

The cost of Adult Social Care for Cornwall Council is now £240 million per year, which equates to over £1,000 out of every household's Council Tax bill. This obviously doesn't leave much money for anything else!

Education:

When a child has Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND), they are entitled to an "Education, Health and Care Plan" (EHCP) which spells out the extra support they need.

Schools are required to cover the first £6,000 of these costs, and the Council is required to pay the rest. However, the amount the Council receives to cover these costs is set by central Government and does not increase in line with the increasing number of EHCPs. This has left Cornwall Council with a shortfall of approximately £30 million. Over the next three years, this figure is expected to increase to £78 million. The Government's solution has two parts:

- Create a "statutory technical override" which means this figure is excluded from our published budget. In other words, the Council has a "hidden overdraft". This "overdraft facility" is due to expire in 2026, at which point the Council would be legally obliged to cut funding for other services to balance the books.
- With this in mind, the government has given Cornwall Council £1m to spend on "identifying efficiencies and new ways of working" to close this £78m gap...

If a child's needs cannot be met by their mainstream school, the Council is obliged to fund a place in "alternative provision" or "special school". Places in these schools can cost in excess of £80,000 per child.

The Council also has an obligation to fund the cost of home-to-school transport for these placements. Whereas most mainstream home-to-school transport is via school buses (which can carry over 50 children each), most children in alternative and special provision travel by taxi either because they live a long way from the school or because they are unable to cope with crowded buses. The cost of home-to-school transport is putting strain on every council in the country, but again Cornwall's rurality makes it much more expensive to provide the same basic service.

There are many theories as to why the number of SEND children is increasing:

- Social media is causing mental illness
- News about climate change and global conflicts are causing anxiety and depression
- Today's teenagers were born in the years after Surestart children's centres were axed
- Two years of COVID lockdowns created social anxiety

- Families struggling to cope with the cost of living are having to work longer hours so have less time to spend with their children or are living in more stress-filled households
- An increasing number of children are living in poverty or insecure accommodation, both of which are known to affect mental health
- Every secondary school in Cornwall used to have a "Clinical Associate Psychologist" who could provide prompt mental health support, so that only the most serious cases needed to be referred to NHS specialist services. Unfortunately these NHS posts are no longer funded, so there are more students on the CAMHS waiting list, meaning that everyone has to wait longer before receiving treatment.
- Mainstream schools have had their funding effectively frozen whilst teachers wages have risen, meaning that there is less money available for teaching assistants and other pastoral support which previously enabled schools to meet emerging Special Educational Needs "in house". Without this support, more problems are building up to crisis point before they are addressed, by which point they are too severe to deal with in the mainstream setting.

Council funding:

The combination of these three factors has left Cornwall Council with a budget gap of £20 million in 2024/25, which will be met by using up reserves. This is not a sustainable solution, and the gap next year is projected to be £68 million. The (Conservative) Deputy Leader of the Council has written to the Secretary of State, saying *"it is evident that Government intervention to avoid the financial abyss faced by the sector is now of critical importance and once again I implore you to take swift and decisive action to enhance the final Local Government Settlement while you still have the chance"*.

Unfortunately, in April's budget, the Chancellor announced that overall departmental spending would increase by just 1% per year over the next five years. But the Government has also promised above-inflation increases in spending for the NHS and the Ministry of Defence. This means that "unprotected departments" (including Local Government) will actually have their budgets cut by around 4% per year.

Even more worryingly, the Labour party (which is likely to be in Government by the end of this year) has said that it will follow the same spending plans, so it looks like residents of Cornwall will continue to see their Council Taxes rise whilst services are reduced.

In 2018, the Local Government Minister (Rishi Sunak) promised that the funding formula which disadvantages rural areas like Cornwall would be reviewed by 2019. The Government has now confirmed that this will not take before the next general election.

Potholes:

In January, the Government announced an extra £3.5 million for Cornwall for road resurfacing and pothole repairs in the new financial year. The Council responded by cutting the amount of its own money being put into that budget by £3.5 million.

So, the grant helped to fill a fraction of the hole in the Council's finances, but not any of the holes in our roads. The total budget for road resurfacing and potholes is $\pounds 24$ million. The estimated backlog of repairs is $\pounds 294$ million. At this rate, even if no new potholes appeared, it would still take over twelve years to repair the faults which already exist!

I believe that the lack of maintenance of gullies and drains is a major factor in the rapid deterioration of our roads. The budget for maintaining and improving highway drainage is ± 3.5 m. The council has not even attempted to calculate how much it would cost to bring them up to spec or to upgrade them to cope with our changing climate.

Road safety:

Recent deaths on local roads have highlighted the lack of structure in the way serious and fatal incidents are communicated to the community. A five-year-old child lost their life on Penpillick Hill, but I have had no contact from Council Officers. All I know is what I have heard in the media, on Facebook, and through talking to residents. I have asked officers to be more transparent and share as much information as possible about all serious accidents so that other road users are made aware of any potential hazards, and informed about what action is taken to prevent similar incidents occurring in future.

Grant Funding:

Funding for towns and parishes to invest in their local areas is split into a multitude of schemes, each with different criteria and administration processes (Shared Prosperity Fund, Community Capacity Fund, Community Levelling Up Fund, Community Infrastructure Levy, High Street Revitalisation Fund etc). This makes it very difficult for parishes (especially the smaller ones) to keep track of what is available, and to submit strong applications before the money is all gone. I have asked Cornwall Council's Localism team to create a single list which summarises all of the available funding so that it can be more easily understood and accessed.

Devolution:

Last year, after months of public debate, Cornwall Council decided <u>not</u> to sign up to a "Level 3" devolution deal. This would have given Cornwall more power over housing and public transport, as well as some extra funding, but all this power and money would have been put into the hands of a "Directly Elected Mayor", whilst locally elected Councillors would lose their power to hold this individual to account.

The Government decided that if we weren't prepared to accept a directly elected mayor, we could only have a "Level 2" devolution deal, which only gives us control of the Adult Education budget, a one-off grant for "Cornish Distinctiveness and Cornish Language", and the creation of a "Floating Offshore Wind Commission". Five months later I haven't heard anything from this commission. I don't know whether they have had any meetings or even appointed a chair...

After this disappointment, I have met with the leaders of all the other political groups to come up with our own "prospectus" of what we think real devolution for Cornwall should look like. This will be finalised and published

in the next two months and we will call on all the national political parties to support it.

Localism:

In 2009 when Cornwall's district and county councils were merged to form a unitary Cornwall Council, assurances were given that local communities would not be forgotten. Nineteen "Community Network Areas" were created, and my Lostwithiel Electoral Division was part of the "St Blazey, Fowey and Lostwithiel Community Network".

This year, due to budget cuts, these nineteen networks have been replaced by twelve "Community Area Partnerships". Obviously the reduction in numbers means an increase in size, which leaves my parishes on the periphery of much larger areas. To make matters worse, my Electoral Division straddles the junction of <u>three</u> Community Area Partnerships:

- Lostwithiel, Lanlivery, St Winnow, St Veep, Braddock and Boconnoc are part of the "Cornwall South" partnership, which includes St Austell and Mevagissey, and stretches as far as Gorran and Grampound.
- Luxulyan is part of the "China Clay" partnership, which stretches as far as Summercourt.
- Lanreath is part of the "South East Cornwall" partnership, which runs all the way from Polruan the Fowey to the Tamar, encompassing Liskeard, Looe, Saltash and Torpoint.

Obviously covering such huge areas, the partnerships are less able to deal with local issues, so they have chosen to work on bigger topics such as affordable housing, climate change, transport connections and economic development.

One issue in particular which affects both the "Cornwall South" and "South East Cornwall" partnerships is road safety on the A390. You will probably know about serious and fatal accidents in your area, but sadly the truth is that there have been too many deaths and injuries along the entire length of this road from Truro to Gunnislake. I am hoping that by bringing together a large number of Cornwall Councillors as well as all the nearby Towns and Parishes, we will finally get Cornwall Council to take this issue more seriously.

Climate action:

It is now over five years since Cornwall Council declared a "Climate Emergency" and set a target for the whole of Cornwall (not just the Council) to be completely decarbonised by 2030. This was always going to be a stretch, and could only have been achieved if the Government had drastically accelerated its own plans and given Cornwall much greater funding and powers. This has not happened, so there is zero chance that the Cornwall will meet this 2030 target. Unfortunately, I feel that the Council's approach to Climate Change is still too tokenistic, "doing what we can with what we've got" rather than "telling the truth about what needs to be done". To address this failing, I have campaigned for a "Cornwall Climate Commission" to be created, to look at the big picture of what it would really take to get Cornwall to net zero. I am delighted that this campaign has finally succeeded and the Commission is set to start work in the next few weeks.

Farming:

Last month Cornwall Council debated a motion on food security. The authors of the motion claimed that the proliferation of solar panels on agricultural land are a threat to our food security and our important daffodil industry. Had they bothered to do their homework, they would have known that currently just 0.3% of Cornwall's agricultural land is occupied by solar panels, and that even in the most extreme scenarios, this is only predicted to increase to 1.2%, so solar panels really aren't a threat to our food security. Of course, fields planted with daffodils aren't growing food, nor are fields planted with maize for bio-energy, or fields set aside for nature. Farmers have to make a living, and the Government has made it harder to export Cornish produce to Europe; harder to hire agricultural workers; and signed trade deals with Australia and New Zealand which allow UK farmers to be undercut by cheap imports produced to standards which would be illegal here. And of course the biggest threat to our food security is climate change, which can wipe out entire harvests through droughts, floods, fires and diseases.

Waste and recycling collections:

New bins have been rolled out across our area and the new collection arrangements are in place. Most people seem to be getting on OK, but if there are any issues, please call 0300 1234 141.

Separating out food waste will reduce the volume of waste being sent for incineration, and reduce carbon emissions. This reduction would be even greater if there were a suitable Anaerobic Digester in Cornwall, but for the time being, all this food waste is being sent to AD plants in Devon!

The Government has now banned Councils from charging fees for certain types of waste at our Household Waste Recycling Centres (such as plasterboard, tyres and asbestos), with the aim of making it easier for people to dispose of waste responsibly, thereby reducing the likelihood of fly-tipping. But Cornwall Council has responded by refusing to accept these forms of waste altogether at six of its sites (including Connonbridge and Bodmin). So, to take advantage of this new free disposal service, residents have to drive to St Austell, Saltash or Tintagel! I have of course objected strongly to this perverse decision. I have been told that this is just a six-month trial period, so I hope that the free service will soon be made available at all thirteen sites.

Lostwithiel Car Parking:

The availability of car parking spaces in Lostwithiel town centre is just as important for residents of the surrounding parishes as it is for residents of the town. Those living closest have the option to walk to the shops, GP, train station or community centre, but those living further away mostly have to travel by car. I recently met with representatives of Network Rail and Lostwithiel Town Council to discuss the possibility of the land next to Lostwithiel Railway Station being converted into a car park. Network Rail are open to this idea, but are not interested in running it themselves. They are happy to lease out the site at an affordable price, but another organisation would have to cover the cost of the development. Cornwall Council could afford to do this, but would then treat the car park as source of revenue to fill their empty coffers. Conversely, the Town Council would run it for the benefit of the community, but the cost of the development could be a big burden for a small organisation. I will do what I can to support this project in the year ahead.

Planning enforcement:

There continues to be widespread dissatisfaction at the time taken for planning enforcement cases to be resolved, and frustration at the lack of transparency in the process (which officers blame on GDPR rules). I have pressed senior officers to increase the number of enforcement officers, but they say they do not have the budget for this.

I have also spoken to the officers responsible for "Information Governance" and challenged them to find ways to provide more meaningful feedback to Councillors and local Councils within the constraints of the GDPR legislation.

Casework Assist:

Cornwall Councillors are increasingly being pressurised by senior Council officers to make all casework enquiries through the "Casework Assist" website. This is causing significant frustration and delays, as issues raised by Councillors are often marked as "closed" when a response has been issued, rather than when the problem has actually been solved.

Town and Parish Council Clerks should have access to Casework Assist, enabling them to report local issues without needing to go via a Cornwall Councillor. This should lead to swifter responses, but some Clerks are encountering the same problem described above. I (along with many other Cornwall Councillors) am pushing for improvements to the system so that all casework can be dealt with as effectively and reliably as possible.

24/26 To receive the Police Report

No report

24/27 To receive the report from the Tree Warden

Cllr Paterson gave his annual report

Once again, we can see that homeowners and farmers have been proactive in ensuring overgrown branches and verge undergrowth, mainly brambles, have been cut back on the numerous Parish roads and lanes. One can only assume that due to ever increasing delivery vans/courier type vehicles continually criss-crossing the Parish daily it would appear they also have complained to owners of overgrown areas.

As previously mentioned, the cost of replacing simple things like wing mirrors on vehicles these days, which are generally controlled by remote control from the driver's dashboard, can cost hundreds of pounds should they need replacing. Should drivers suffer damage to their vehicles and wing mirrors etc. due to a landowners neglect in cutting back branches and hedges etc. then claims may well be raised against the landowner.

I am pleased to note that brambles which normally cause deep scratches and can seriously mark vehicles (which can result in insurance claims against the homeowner/farmer) has certainly made a positive difference to our narrow roads. Now doubt we have all seen and read about cyclists and walkers being snagged by brambles so hopefully landowners have taken on board the fact that they personally need to bear in mind that insurance claims can be expensive should someone suffer vehicle damage or physical damage and raise a claim against them.

I frequently cycle around our Parish roads and like last year I am glad to see a great deal of the overgrown vegetation growing out farm hedges and banks has been cut back.

The grass on the Forest field has recently been cut and late on last year a major tidy up in the forest section was conducted with help from Councillor Hemmings and some helpers from the Primary School. The Forest Field is now tidy and safe for children to explore.

The short pathway between the Crown and Red Moor School, which leads to the St. Brevita well, throughout the past year has been kept clear of overgrown undergrowth and brambles so access to the area has greatly improved. Thanks to Red Moor School staff.

As per last year the quick spray tar solution which is used to fill in potholes in the Parish is proving completely inadequate in most cases. With heavy rain and cold temperatures experienced over this past winter the tar is disintegrating very quickly, mainly due to the ever-increasing delivery vehicle and school traffic causing numerous large potholes which are evident around the Parish. Whilst the quick spray solution seems initially fantastic, even in the midterm e.g., several months later, the potholes are very much back in evidence. With so many narrow lanes in the Parish most vehicles follow exactly the same path, hence when a disintegration of tar takes place we see within a short space of time that potholes practically appear overnight. Should anyone have problems with overhanging branches/dangerous undergrowth etc. feel free to contact me and I shall endeavour to resolve the situation as soon as possible.

24/28 To receive the report from the Friends of the Luxulyan Valley

Cllr Turner gave the following report

Footpath 406/2/1. It has been requested that this footpath running from behind the Crown Inn to Lower Roselath farm to be cut back of overgrown nettles and bracken; this was done within two weeks.

Lanlivery footpath booklets continue to sell slowly. Money is collected in a box in church.

Friends of Luxulyan Valley meetings are displayed in the Granite Towers. There are Luxulyan Valley leaflets available on request, or from Luxulyan Post Office.

24/29 To receive the report from the CALC representative

Cllr Challis gave the annual report.

CALC is the membership association for parish and town councils in the Duchy. The Association offers support in all aspects of the work of local councils in Cornwall.

I attended the AGM on the 24th October 2023 and the main speaker was Steve Rowell, Prevent and Organised Crime Lead, Cornwall Council. He outlined the implications of the Terrorism (Protection of Premises) Bill, currently going through Parliament, commonly known as **Martyns Law.** This legislation will place important new obligations on providers of premises including Local Councils. At the AGM the Chairman outlined that it had been a busy year with the number of requests remaining high, mainly concerning funding and governance.

CALC has maintained a strong training calendar and is working with Cornwall Council to extend access to their on line training portal.

Civility and Respect has been an issue and a national body has been set up to address the bullying, harassment and intimidation of local councillors and council officers.

The most significant outcome was the creation of a national Pledge on Civility and Respect, inviting local councils to sign up to a zero tolerance of bullying and harassment and agreeing to ensure a positive culture of mutual support within the Council. At the end of the year 35 local councils in Cornwall have signed the pledge.

Currently the Board has set up a strategic review of the work of CALC to ensure its services and access to them is in line with the needs of the membership.

24/30 To receive the Thomas Bullock Report

Cllr Wright gave the annual report.

The Trustees had a meeting last October. The Clerk has received two requests for funds from the Thomas Bullock Charity. One was from a local young lady who had been offered a placement on a two-mast working cargo schooner built in 1920. She would be working and learning techniques like, steering, rigging, charting and traditional cargo loading and celestial navigation. Trip would take 5-6 month, visiting countries in central America, the Azores, New York and Belize.

The other request was for a donation towards the new playground equipment to be situated in the village playing field.

There were 24 other beneficiaries including widows and widowers in the ancient parish of Lanlivery. These donations were given out in November.

24/31 To receive the report from the Luxulyan Valley Partnership

Cllr Sinkins gave the annual report.

- LVP AGM held at Luxulyan Village Hall in June 2023 with Cornwall Cllr Colin Martin voted in again as Chairman for the year. As well as Cornwall Council, the 4 adjoining Parish Councils (St Blazey/ Lanlivery/Luxulyan/Tywardreath & Par) and the Friends of Luxulyan Valley all have voting rights. Adjoining landowners are also encouraged to come to meetings along with organisations such as Cornwall Heritage Trust/SW Rivers Trust/Cornwall Wildlife Trust/WHS.
- Although the Partnership has no statutory authority, it exists to help in identifying a vision for the valley and to help all interested parties to communicate with each other.
- Jenny Heskett, the CORMAC ranger has continued looking after the site with twice weekly leat inspections and fortnightly inspections at Cam Bridges. Leat repairs are carried out as necessary. Regular volunteer days held by Cormac/FOLV to help with weed clearance and general maintenance & if anyone would like to help with these then

more info on FOLV website or letstalk.cornwall.gov.uk/luxulyan-valley-partnership

- This year the steps from Black Hill car park up to the viaduct have been improved and new steps installed on the north side of the viaduct
- Asbestos at the rear of the turbine house has been cleared.
- Repairs have been made at Cam Bridges
- GWR grant funding is being used to increase awareness of the valley
- CC is speaking to a few companies about the possibilities for hydro electricity generation to resume
- The path from St Blazey to the Ponts Mill end of the valley has now been designated a public footpath

24/32 To receive the report from the Community Area Partnership

Cllr Challis gave the annual report.

There are now 12 new community partnerships in Cornwall. They started work in the summer of 2023 and replaced the former Community Networks. The idea is to bring local organisations and people together, to tackle the issues that matter to communities, from education, planning, potholes and everything in between.

Partnership meetings are open to the public and the press. The partnership involves Cornwall Councillors and town and parish councils in the area. It also involves other organisations that serve our communities. These include the Police, health services and voluntary and community sectors.

Meetings are held every four months. At the meeting in January CAP representatives were consulted to determine the area of focus for this meeting. 35 responses were received. The results were Highways and Transport 83%, Housing and Planning 6%, Community and Wellbeing 6%, Environment 3% and Economic Development 3%.

There was a presentation on Cornwall Council Transport Strategy and Highways. Among many a question was asked why when potholes are repaired, do other potholes on the same stretch of road get left. The answer was Inspectors are encouraged to check for other defects whilst in an area but there are a number of other factors to consider such as severity, resources, time and equipment available, and managing workload against other priority works.

There was also a presentation on the Local Plan and call for sites by Rob Lacey, Planning Policy Manager, Cornwall Council. Conversations with CAPs is a starting point for the engagement process. An interim report will be issued in the summer of 2024. Process for Neighbourhood Priorities Statements (NPS) still awaited. Cornwall Council will be required to consider any NPS when developing the next Local Plan. Call for Sites consultation open to April.

24/33 Public Questions

A member of the public asked to be kept informed about the Crift Farm enforcement situation; 4 separate Officers/Inspectors has concluded that the building was illegal but it was still there – why?

A members of the public asked if it be possible for some form of reflective signage to be put up at the entrance to the Lanlivery road from the A390, as it was very difficult to identify in the dark. Cllr Martin would investigate.

A member of the public noted that more and more cars were dropping off/picking up children from Redmoor School. The congestion was unacceptable and parents and taxis and were now parking and blocking driveways and also parking further and further up the village, negatively impacting on local residents.

The Chairman invited all present to join the Council for light refreshments following the meetig.

Meeting Closed 7.58 pm